MAHARASHTRA POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD



Minutes of 9th Consent Appraisal Committee Meeting of 2022-2023 held on 20.10.2022 & 03.11.2022 at Dalamal House, Nariman Point, Mumbai.

Following members of the Consent Appraisal Committee were present:

1. Shri. A. L Jarhad, Chairman

Chairman, MPCB

2. Shri Pravin Darade, Member

Member Secretary, M.P.C. Board.

3. Shri P.K. Mirashe,

Member

Technical Advisor, MIDC.

4. Dr. Y. B. Sontakke, Member Convener Joint Director (WPC), M.P.C. Board, Mumbai.

5. Additional Chief Secretary, Home (Transport) Dept., Mumbai & Representative from NEERI - leave of absence was granted.

Following Officer of MPCB were present for the meeting:

1. Shri V.M. Motghare Invitee Member Joint Director (APC), M.P.C. Board, Mumbai.

2. Dr. A.R. Supate, Invitee Member

Principal Scientific Office, M.P.C. Board, Mumbai.

3. Shri N.N. Gurav, Invitee Member

Regional Officer (BMW), M.P.C. Board, Mumbai.

Chairman of the committee welcomed the members of the committee and allowed proceeding of the meeting to start.

The meeting thereafter deliberated on the fresh agenda items [Booklet No. 48 of Consent to Operate cases] placed before the committee and following decision were taken:

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
	Booklet No. 4	3		•	
1	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000137129	Cipla Ltd. D-22 Unit 3 - Plot No. D-22, MIDC Kurkumbh, Tal: Daund, Dist: Pune Daund	APPROVED Amendment in Consent to Operate under change in product-mix	30.04.2024	Committee noted that, PP has applied for amendment in consent to operate under change in product mix. Committee also noted that, PP intends to reduce the production quantity of two products namely Abacavir Sulphate 35 MT/A to 3.0 MT/A & Tenofovir Disoproxil Fumarate 09 MT/A 05 MT/A and introduce four new products namely Omeprazole Sodium- 15 MT/A, Pantoprazole Sodium- 10.5 MT/A, Tenofovir Pivafen Fumarate- 0.5 MT/A & Nirmatrelvir- 10 MT/A. Total production quantity will not be changed 150 MT/A. Committee further noted that, the existing unit is having Consent to Operate which is valid upto 30/4/2024 and also obtained Environmental Clearance on 13/10/2005. Committee further noted that, PP has submitted No Increase in Pollution Load' certificate of Accredited consultant. Committee further noted that, the said case was discussed in Technical Committee meeting held on 18/8/2022 and committee recommended the case for change in product under product mix. After due deliberation, it was decided to consider the case for Amendment in existing Consent to Operate under Change in Product mix by imposing following conditions: 1. Industry shall obtain the change in name in Environmental Clearance. 2. Industry shall comply with the conditions stipulated in Environmental Clearance and ensure display/upload of six

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					 monthly compliance monitoring report on their official website. 3. Industry shall dispose the By-products (if any) to the actual user having permission under Rule 9 of Hazardous & Other Waste (M&TM) Rules, 2016. 4. Industry shall not manufacture the other products for which the permission is not granted by the MPCB. 5. Industry shall ensure the connectivity of the OCEMS data to the Boards server.
2	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000138544	Bharat Forge Ltd E-1/1 Baramati Baramati	NOT APPROVED Defer Consent to 1st Operate (Expansion)		Committee noted that, PP has applied for part 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) for Forging activity-32000 MT/A with amalgamation of existing consent to operate. Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having Consent to Operate which is valid upto 28/2/2022, applied for renewal. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Consent to Establish (Expansion) on 28/12/2018 with a condition to obtain Environmental Clearance. Committee further noted that, PP has taken effective steps prior to obtain environmental Clearance and not obtained Environmental Clearance. After due deliberation, it was decided to defer the case and call technical presentation before Technical Committee constituted by the Board w.r.t. compliance of existing consent conditions, compliance of C to E (Expansion) along with present status report.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
3	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000140600	Sahyadri Sahakari Sakhar Karkhana Limited, Yashwantnagar 19 To 24 A/p Yashwantnagar Karad	APPROVED Consent to 1 st Operate for expansion	31.08.2023	Committee noted that, PP applied for for grant of consent to 1st operate for expansion by 100 KLPD, total capacity will 145 KLPD. Committee also noted that, the industry has provided MEE & Bio composting for Existing 45 KLPD. MEE & Incineration boiler for expansion – 100 KLPD. PP obtain EC on 24.12.2021 for expansion and Consent to Establish for expansion on 29.10.2021. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant 1st operate for expansion by 100 KLPD, total capacity will 145 KLPD, by imposing following conditions: 1. PP shall submit/Extend BG of Rs. 25 Lakh towards compliance of consent conditions and operation and maintenance of pollution control systems. 2. PP shall comply with all conditions in Environmental Clearance.
4	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000141079	Hyosung India Private Limited Plot No. 1 Sector No. 11, Auric City, Shendra Aurangabad	APPROVED Consent to 1st Operate Expansion with renewal of existing unit	31.12.2023	Committee noted that, PP has applied for 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) with renewal of existing Consent to Operate (Amalgamation). Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having consent to operate which is valid upto 31/12/2022 for mfg of Spandex Yarn. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Consent to Establish for expansion activity on 02/2/2022 with a condition to obtain clarification regarding applicability of Environmental Clearance from competent Authority.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided combine treatment system for treatment of trade (810 CMD) & domestic (90 CMD).
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided Air pollution control systems at all sources of emissions and HW disposal will be as per the provisions of Rule.
					Committee further noted that, PP has produced letter in which reported that, they have already obtained clarification from SEIAA for existing activity in which SEIAA clarified vide letter dated 30/7/2018, Environmental Clearance not required as integrated EC obtained for industrial estate which includes Red/Orange/Green industries with CETP & STP and individual industry of the park in discussion shall not require EC as per the provisions of EIA Notification.
					Committee further desires to know clarification from MIDC w.r.t. total projects in AURIC and Environmental Clearance obtained as an infrastructure project or pollution load of all units proposed to locate in estate considered in Environmental Clearance.
					After due deliberation, it was decided in principally to consider the case grant of 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) with renewal of existing Consent to Operate (Amalgamation) by imposing following conditions:
					 Industry shall operate pollution control systems scientifically to achieve the consented norms. Industry shall dispose the Hazardous Waste as per the provisions of Rule.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					 Industry shall submit/extend Bank guarantee of Rs. 25 Lakh towards O&M of Pollution Control System and compliance of consent conditions.
					Consent shall be issued after receipt of information from MIDC w.r.t. total projects in AURIC and Environmental Clearance obtained as an infrastructure project or pollution load of all units proposed to locate in estate considered in Environmental Clearance.
5	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000142515	M/s. Western Coalfields Limited, Dinesh Opencast Project (MKD-III) Toposheet no. 55 P/5 of Survey of India), near Hevati village, Tal-Umred, Dist-Nagpur	APPROVED Consent to 1st Operate for expansion.	31.03.2023	Committee noted that PP has applied for first consent to operate for expansion of open cast coal mine from 4.2 MTPA to 4.5 MTPA (Expansion by 0.3 MTPA). Committee also noted that PP has obtained Environment clearance for expansion of mine by 0.3 MTPA vide letter dated 26.05.2022. Committee further noted that PP has provided ETP & Sedimentation tank. Provided Fixed water sprinklers, Mist spray trolley mounted and mobile water tanker for dust suppression. Provided CAAQMS. Analysis results of effluent and AAQM are within the limit. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant first consent to operate for expansion of open cast coal mine from 4.2 MTPA to 4.5 MTPA (Expansion by 0.3 MTPA) by imposing following conditions:

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					PP shall submit the BG of Rs.25.0 Lakh towards O & M of pollution control system and towards compliance of consent to operate conditions and EC expansion conditions
6	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000143816	INDIABULLS PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED "Sky Forestâ€ Residential wing A2 & A3 at C. S. No. 841 of Lower Parel Division (G-South Ward), Jupiter Mill, Senapati Bapat Marg, Mumbai- 400013.	NOT APPROVED Defer 1st Consent to Operate (Part-III)		Committee noted that, PP has applied for grant of 1st Consent to Operate (Part-III) for Residential Construction project having Total plot area of 39,086.43 Sq.m and Construction BUA of 2,03,506.78 Sq.m out of Total Construction BUA of 4,88,855.71 Sq.m (As per EC dtd. 11/12/2015). Committee also noted that, PP has obtained 1) Environmental Clearance accorded for Construction project vide SEAC 2010/CR.284/TC.2 dtd. 23/01/2012 for TPA of 39,086.43 Sq.m and TCBUA of 4,45,000 Sq.m. 2) Amendment in Environment Clearance accorded vide SEAC 2010/CR.198/TC.2 dtd. 11/12/2015 for TPA of 39,077 Sq.m and Construction BUA of 4,88,855.71 Sq.m. 3) Revalidation of Environment accorded vide SEIAA-2019/CR-24/SEIAA dtd. 05/02/2019 and the EC is revalidated for the period up to 21/01/2026. Committee further noted that, PP has submitted audited balance sheet on 04/10/2022, Pointwise Environment Clearance conditions compliance verification report of SRO-Mumbai-I submitted. After due deliberation, it was decided to defer the case and put-up after obtaining application for Consent to Operate for Part-I & Part-II of the project.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
7	<u> </u>	Godavari Biorefineries Ltd 180/1, 180/2, 187/1, 187/2 A/p- Sakarwadi (158- 165,167-178, 180/1, 180/2, 181/1, 181/2, 187/1, 187/2, 188, 189,199, 511, 139- 2) Kopargaon	APPROVED 2nd Part Consent to Operate with amalgamation of existing Consent to Operate		Committee noted that, PP has applied for part 2nd Consent to Operate of expansion with amalgamation of existing Consent to Operate. Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having consent to operate which is valid upto 31/8/2024 for mfg of various synthetic organic chemicals. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Environmental Clearance on 06/8/2021 and Consent to Establish (Expansion) on 12/4/2022. Committee also noted that, PP has provided ETP and treated effluent 100% recycled in the process to achieve ZLD. Also, provided air pollution control system's and proposed to dispose HW as per the provisions of Rule. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant part 2nd Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing Consent to Operate by imposing following conditions: 1. Industry shall operate pollution control systems scientifically to achieve the consented norms. 2. Industry shall recycle the entire treated effluent into the process to achieve Zero Liquid Discharge. 3. Industry shall dispose the Hazardous Waste as per the provisions of Rule. 4. Industry shall extend the existing Bank Guarantees towards the O&M of Pollution Control system and compliance of consent conditions. 5. Consent shall be issued without prejudice to the order's passed/being passed by Hon'ble NGT.

Sr. No.	Application Unique	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted	Remarks / Discussion
	Number			Up to	
8	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000143886	Sound Castings Pvt. Ltd. Unit-5 T-53/2 Kagal Hatkanangale 5 Star MIDC, Kasaba Sangaon, Tal. Kagal, Dist. Kolhapur.	1st Consent to Operate		Committee noted that PP has applied for 1st consent to operate for manufacturing of CI & SG Iron Casting – 24000 MT/A. Committee also noted that, Board has granted consent to establish vide dated 05.07.2021, as per conditions stipulated in this consent. 1. PP has not submitted the details of provision of VOC destruction system to paint booth. 2. PP has not submitted the details of secondary fume extraction system including scrap cleaning, sizing/cutting & belling plant.
					After due deliberation, it was decided to defer the case & issue SCN for refusal of 1 st consent to operate due to above lapses.
9	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000142642	ECONOMIC EXPLOSIVE LTD. VILLAGE SHIVA SAWANGA VILLAGE SHIVA SAWANGA NAGPUR	APPROVED 1st Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing C to O	30.06.2026	Committee noted that, PP has applied for part 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing consent to operate. Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having Consent to Operate for mfg of Explosive products. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Consent to Establish on 10/11/2020 for expansion activity. Also, obtained PESO license which is valid upto 31/3/2024
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided ETP including RO & MEE and treated effluent 100% recycled in the process to

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					achieve ZLD. Also, provided STP for treatment of domestic wastewater.
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided Air Pollution Control systems at all sources of emissions.
					After due deliberation, it was decided to consider the case for grant of 1 st Consent to Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing consent to operate by imposing following conditions:
					 Industry shall operate pollution control systems scientifically to achieve the consented norms Industry shall recycle the entire treated effluent into the process to achieve ZLD. Industry shall destroy explosive residues in well-designed incinerator facility as per the guidelines of PESO/CHWTSDF Industry shall extend Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 Lakh towards O&M of Pollution Control system and compliance of consent conditions
10	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000145124	SUPREME PETROCHEM LTD Copy attached Village- Amdoshi/Wangani, Wakan- Roha Road, Tal. Roha, Dist. Raigad, 402106 Roha	NOT APPROVED Defer Part 1st Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing C to O		Committee noted that, PP has applied for part 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing consent to operate for mfg of Polystyrene and Expandable Polystyrene (EPS). Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having Consent to Operate which is valid upto 31/8/2024. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Consent to Establish (Expansion) on 08/5/2020 and Environmental Clearance on 16/11/2019.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided Effluent Treatment Plant including RO & MVR. Further, treated effluent of expansion activity will be recycled in the process to achieve ZLD for expansion activity.
					Committee further noted that, PP has informed that, treated effluent from existing unit is partly recycled into the process, cooling tower make-up, fire fighting for utility purposes and remining is applied on land for gardening within their premises and no discharge into Amba River estuary.
					After due deliberation, it was decided to defer the case and call technical presentation before Technical Committee constituted by the Board w.r.t. to discharge in Amba River.
11	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000145459	Padmashree Dr. D. Y. Patil S.S.K. Ltd. 6/Plot No.1,2,3,4,15,50,30 5, 306, 307 Dnyanshantinagar, Vesaraf - Palsambe Gaganbavada	APPROVED Consent to 1 st Operate for Expansion	31.08.2023	Committee noted that, PP applied for 1st Consent to operate for expansion for 15 KLPD distillery, after expansion it is 60 KLPD distillery. Committee also noted that, the spent wash generated from expansion will be treated in existing system comprising MEE followed by incineration boiler of capacity 500 CMD to achieve ZLD. It is ZLD unit. Provided CPU for MEE condensate & other effluent. PP obtain EC on 16.03.2020 for expansion and Consent to Establish for expansion on 24.07.2022.
					After due deliberation, it was decided to grant 1st Consent to operate for expansion for 15 KLPD distillery, after expansion it is 60 KLPD distillery., by imposing following conditions:

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					 PP shall submit/Extend BG of Rs. 25 Lakh towards compliance of consent conditions and operation and maintenance of pollution control systems. PP shall comply with all conditions in Environmental Clearance.
12	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000144577	Piramal Estates Pvt. Ltd - Application for Consent to Operate (Part-I) (Cluster -I Wing A to F) for proposed Residential cum commercial building at Plot Bearing Survey No. 7/1, to 105/4, 1 Balkum	NOT APPROVED Defer Consent to 1st Operate		Committee noted that that PP has applied for 1st consent to operate (Part) for Residential Bldg with Total Plot area1,29,000.0 Sq. Mtr. & BUA- 87,696.07 Sq. Mtr. With C.I. of Rs. 792.62 Crs. obtained amendment in EC dtd 22/09/2021 with minor increase in FSI, Decrease in Non-FSI and reduction in overall BUA from earlier 6,35,593 Sq. M to 5,92,938 Sq. M. BUA is 87,696.07 sq. mtrs and work of STP & OWC installation is completed as per the Architect Certificate submitted. Committee further noted that pointwise compliance of Environment Clearance not submitted. After due deliberation it was decided to defer the case and putup in the next CAC meeting after obtaining pointwise compliance of Environment Clearance from SRO.
13	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000146349	Ajinkyatara Sahakari Sakhar Karkhana Ltd Distillery Division. 307-324 Shahunagar Shendre Satara	APPROVED Consent to 1 st Operate for expansion	31.08.2024	Committee noted that, PP applied for 1st Consent to Operate for 15 KLPD distillery unit (30 to 45 KLPD), previous consent is valid for 30 KLPD i.e applied for total 45 KLPD. Committee also noted that, the industry has provided MEE followed by bio-composting & CPU to achieve ZLD. PP obtain EC on 17.08.2022 for expansion and Consent to Establish for expansion on 04.07.2022.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					After due deliberation, it was decided to grant 1st Consent to Operate for 15 KLPD distillery unit (30 to 45 KLPD), previous consent is valid for 30 KLPD i.e applied for total 45 KLPD., by imposing following conditions: 1. PP shall submit/Extend BG of Rs. 25 Lakh towards compliance of consent conditions and operation and maintenance of pollution control systems. 2. PP shall comply with all conditions in Environmental Clearance.
14	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000147317	Privi Speciality Chemicals Limited (Unit-II) C-3, 4, 5, 6, 6/1, 6/2,7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13 & C-33, C-33/1, 33/2, X-8, 9, 10, 11, 12 MIDC Mahad Mahad	APPROVED Part 1st Operate (Expansion) with amalgamation of existing C to O	28.02.2023	Committee noted that, PP has applied for part 1st Consent to Operate (Expansion) for mfg of some of the organic chemicals as per Consent to Establish & Environmental Clearance with amalgamation of existing consent to operate. Committee also noted that, the existing unit is having consent to operate which is valid upto 28/2/2023. Committee further noted that, PP has obtained Consent to Establish for Expansion on 18/8/2022 and Environmental Clearance on 24/8/2022. Committee further noted that, PP has provided ETP & STP treatment system for treatment of trade effluent & sewage resp and treated effluent will be partly recycled into the process upto 137 CMD & restrict discharge to CETP upto 98 CMD as per existing CTO limit.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					Committee further noted that, PP has provided necessary Air Pollution Control system and Hazardous Waste disposal as per the provisions of Rule. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant renewal of consent by imposing following conditions:
					 Industry shall operate pollution control system scientifically to achieve the consented norms. The by-products shifted to Hazardous Waste as per existing consent, same shall be continued. Industry shall dispose the HW waste as per the provisions of HW Rule. Industry shall submit/extend Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 Lakh towards O&M of pollution control system and compliance of consent conditions.
15	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000147042	Tilaknagar Industries Ltd 45 P O Tilaknagar Shrirampur	APPROVED Consent to Operate	31.08.2023	Committee noted that PP has applied for existing consent to operate for splitting of single consent into two different consents for 50KLD distillery for molasses base unit and IMPL unit (Bottling Plant). Committee also noted that earlier Renewal of Consent to Operate dt: 30.12.2020 is valid up to 31.08.2023 and was for 50 KLPD molasses base distillery unit with bottling unit. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant consent to operate splitting of single consent into two different consents for 50KLD distillery for molasses base unit and IMPL unit (Bottling Plant), subject to submission of ROC.

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
16	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000147227	Bhimashankar Sahakari Sakhar Karkhana Ltd. Gat No 148 A/P - Pargaon Via Awasari Bk, Tal Ambegaon, District - Pune Ambegaon	APPROVED Consent 1 st Operate for expansion	31.07.2023	Committee noted that, PP applied for 1st consent to operate for Co-generation plant of 10 MW. Committee also noted that, the industry has provided CPU to treat Co-gen effluent. PP obtain Environmental Clearance: vide letter no. EC22B004MH12609 file No. SIA/MH/ THE/70064/2011 dtd. 21.04.2022. for Expansion of Co-gen- 19 MW to 29 MW. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant 1st consent to operate for Co-generation plant of 10 MW with amalgamation of existing, by imposing following conditions: 1. PP shall comply with all conditions in existing consent of Sugar unit 2. PP shall comply with all conditions in Environmental Clearance.
17	MPCB- CONSENT- 0000147623	Radico NV distilleries maharashtra Ltd plot no. D-192 to D- 195, MIDC,Shendra Existing premise Aurangabad	APPROVED Consent to 1st Operate	31.08.2023	Committee noted that PP has applied for 1st Consent to Operate towards expansion of Grain base distillery 200 KLPD with Cogeneration unit 5.5 MW. Consent to Establish for Expansion for 200 KLPD grain base distillery obtained on 01.08.2022 with CI of Rs. 216.5 Crs. Committee also noted that PP has obtained Environment Clearance on 06.07.2022 Effluent generation from expansion will be I.E. – 156 CMD and Domestic – 0CMD. Spent wash treatment Bio-methanation followed by MEE & incineration boiler. After due deliberation, it was decided to grant 1st Consent to Operate for expansion of Grain base distillery 200 KLPD and Cogeneration unit 5.5 MW, by imposing following conditions:

Sr. No.	Application Unique Number	Industry name and Address	Decision on grant of consent	Consent granted Up to	Remarks / Discussion
					Industry shall submit/extend Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 lakh towards compliance of consent conditions.

The meeting is ended with vote of thanks.